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----- Original Message ----- 

From: Waterways Council 

To: undisclosed-recipients: 

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 1:13 PM

Subject: WCI E-brief January 28, 2013

January 28, 2013 • Volume 10, Issue #3
LOW-WATER UPDATE: SHIPPING CHANNEL HOLDS 

Recent weather across the Mississippi Valley should ensure continued navigation on the Mississippi River through mid-February, even if no additional rain falls between now and Feb. 15. The period from January 9-13 saw three-eighths inches of rain, with more than 10 inches locally, over the Ohio River Valley and the Mississippi watershed south of St. Louis. Warm temperatures also melted existing snow water equivalents of one to two inches over the watershed to the north of Memphis, which helped provide some relief from the persistent drought.  A rock at Mississippi River Mile 38.5 is being watched.  

The first phase of the rock removal work near Thebes was completed ahead of schedule on Jan. 12 and deepened the navigation channel by two feet.   

In other news, a barge accident last Tuesday closed Locks and Dam 27 for several hours just north of St. Louis and stopped traffic in both directions, backing up 142 barges.

NEW YORK TIMES COVERS LOW-WATER  

On January 18, the New York Times wrote a fourth story about the Mississippi River low-water situation, and also provided a blog under the “Green” environmental section of its website.  The article can be found at http://www.nytimes.com/2013/01/18/us/mississippi-shipping-continues-despite-drought.html?_r=0
The blog can be found at http://green.blogs.nytimes.com/2013/01/18/drought-points-up-critical-role-of-u-s-waterways
----- Original Message ----- 

From: Stan Scobie 

To: cog@lists.earthworksaction.org 

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 11:49 AM

Subject: [COG] PA: Emerg Planning Regs: Unconventional Gas

 

Stan Scobie, Binghamton, NY, 607-669-4683

=================================

link to announcement is here:

http://paenvironmentdaily.blogspot.com/2013/01/emergency-planningresponse-rules.html
Then look for (at pg 526):

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD

Rules and Regulations

Emergency response planning at unconventional

well sites. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 526

----- Original Message ----- 

From: Stan Scobie 

To: cog@lists.earthworksaction.org 

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 11:32 AM

Subject: [COG] Obama Could Bypass Congress to Fulfill Climate Pledge

 

Stan Scobie, Binghamton, NY, 607-669-4683

=================================

Obama Could Bypass Congress to Fulfill Climate Pledge

http://www.bloomberg.com/news/2013-01-23/obama-could-bypass-congress-to-fulfill-climate-pledge.html
By Mark Drajem - Jan 23, 2013 11:17 AM ET
President Barack Obama, whose inaugural address made climate change a second-term priority, could bypass Congress and implement much of his environmental agenda unilaterally through regulations and executive action.


The president can accomplish with rules much of what was sought in the next few years under the failed 2009 cap-and-trade legislation, relying on authority in the four-decade-old Clean Air Act and a 2007 Supreme Court decision applying it to carbon- dioxide emissions.Obama, for example, is set to impose curbs on coal-fired power plants of companies such as American Electric Power Co. (AEP) and faces pressure to limit methane discharged during hydraulic fracturing, environmentalists say. He could reject Keystone XL, a pipeline that would carry Canadian tar-sands crude to U.S. Gulf Coast refineries. Nebraska’s governor yesterday approved a new route, clearing the way for Obama’s decision on theTransCanada Corp. (TRP) project.

“He doesn’t need new legislation in order to make significant progress,” David Doniger, climate policy director for the Natural Resources Defense Council, said. “The primary pathway is to use the legal authority he clearly already has.”

Each of the actions sought by Obama’s environmental allies faces opposition from industry groups eager to develop new North American oil or gas resources, or to keep alive a struggling coal industry.

Coal’s Opposition

“He’s doing everything he can to circumvent Congress, which has steadfastly refused to do his bidding on climate change,” said Luke Popovich, a spokesman for the National Mining Association. The group represents coal producers such as Arch Coal Inc. (ACI)and Peabody Energy Corp. (BTU)
The mining group opposes Obama’s proposal to issue caps on greenhouse gases from power plants. Such a move would “virtually rule out new coal plants,” Popovich said.

New regulations would invariably face legal challenges or attempts by Congress to repeal them, he said.

Judging from his Jan. 21 speech, Obama won’t be deterred.

“We will respond to the threat of climate change, knowing that the failure to do so would betray our children and future generations,” Obama said in his inaugural remarks. “That is how we will preserve our planet, commanded to our care by God.”

“I don’t know if he can match the rhetoric, but he can do a whole lot,” said Melinda Pierce, deputy director for federal policy at the Sierra Club in Washington. “The president is stating emphatically that he is going to take the reins himself.”

White House

While “it’s clear that bipartisan opposition to legislative action is still a reality,” White House spokesman Jay Carney said yesterday that Obama would build on moves he made in his first term to deal with climate change. He didn’t provide details.

Ultimately, solving the problem of global warming will require more than American action. While the U.S. has one of the world’s highest carbon-emission rates per capita, it’s not the largest or the fastest-growing source of the pollutants. As U.S. emissions have fallen since 2007, when the recession took hold and then natural-gas usage surged, India and China are driving demand for coal and will continue to do so in coming years, according to theInternational Energy Agency in Paris.

“The real concerns are in China, India and elsewhere, where emissions are rising,” said U.S. Representative Ed Whitfield, a Kentucky Republican who leads the energy and power subcommittee of the House Energy and Commerce Committee.

Whitfield said he expects Obama will be aggressive with environmental regulations in his second term because the Republican House majority won’t go along with his agenda.

Hurricane Sandy

Public pressure may help the president overcome criticism from lawmakers such as Whitfield. With Obama re-elected, 2012 marking the hottest year on record for the U.S. and Congress working on a $60 billion relief package for the victims of Hurricane Sandy, climate change has growing political resonance.

Under Obama, the Environmental Protection Agency ruled that carbon dioxide pollution endangers public health, opening the way for the agency to regulate its release under the Clean Air Act. The 2007 Supreme Court decision made it possible to regulate the gas if it meets that threat level.

Obama has raised mileage standards for automobiles, and now his administration is focusing on power plants. New rules for long-haul trucks, aircraft or refineries may follow.

Rules for new power plants are set to be finalized by the end of March, and EPA will then face legal and political pressure to issue related standards for existing plants, one of the most substantial single actions Obama could take.

Power Plants

If structured correctly, new rules for existing plants could let the U.S. meet Obama’s goal of cutting greenhouse gas emissions 17 percent by 2020 at a cost of $4 billion in that year, according to a report last month from NRDC’s Doniger.

Companies such as American Electric Power have tried to head off those rules, saying that legislation is a better way to deal with the issue. “If the EPA does move forward, it will be important that the program provide maximum flexibility,” said Melissa McHenry, an AEP spokeswoman.

In addition to power plants, environmentalists are pushing the agency to issue limits on methane emissions from oil and gas production, transport and use. The EPA has set rules to combat air pollution from wells where hydraulic fracturing, or fracking, is used, and it should now enact caps on methane releases, according to Mark Brownstein, chief counsel for energy at the Environmental Defense Fund in New York.

API Opposes

Existing rules already force the capture of much of these methane emissions -- which are a more potent cause of climate warming -- so calls for new regulations are a “red herring,” Eric Wohlschlegel, a spokesman for the American Petroleum Institute, said by e-mail. His Washington-based group represents producers and refiners such as Exxon Mobil Corp. (XOM)
The most symbolic choice Obama faces is over the bid by TransCanada (TRP) to build the 1,661-mile (2,673-kilometer) Keystone XL pipeline to carry oil sands products from Canada to Gulf Coast refineries. Obama rejected the company’s application last year and invited a new application with a route that protects an environmentally sensitive area of Nebraska.

Yesterday, Nebraska Governor Dave Heineman, a Republican, approved TransCanada’s revised route, clearing the way for a final decision from the State Department, which has to approve the project because it crosses the U.S.-Canadian border. The department won’t conclude its review before the end of March, Victoria Nuland, a department spokeswoman, said yesterday.

TransCanada rose in early trading today, after slipping 0.7 percent in Toronto yesterday.

Pipeline Decision

“I wonder if the president hasn’t backed himself into a corner on the Keystone pipeline,” Nebraska Republican Representative Lee Terry, a supporter of its construction, said today on C-SPAN cable television. “I worry that he’ll make a decision based on politics.”

Climate activists will bring as many as 40,000 people to the White House Feb. 17 to protest the project, one they say would be a disaster for the climate by encouraging development of an especially harmful pollutant. Tar sands need to be melted and refined into usable petroleum products.

The decision lies entirely with the Obama administration.

“Keystone has become this huge litmus test to show if Obama is serious” about his pledge, said Daniel Kessler, a campaigner for 350.org, a group organizing the White House protest. Approving it would make “a mockery of his rhetoric.”

To contact the reporter on this story: Mark Drajem in Washington atmdrajem@bloomberg.net
To contact the editor responsible for this story: Jon Morgan at jmorgan97@bloomberg.net
----- Original Message ----- 

From: Lorne Stockman 

To: cog@lists.earthworksaction.org 

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 11:19 AM

Subject: [COG] Shale gas boom now visible from space

http://www.ft.com/intl/cms/s/0/d2d2e83c-6721-11e2-a805-00144feab49a.html#axzz2JHh8Ngcd
Shale gas boom now visible from space

By Ajay Makan in London and Ed Crooks in New York

Oil companies at the heart of the US shale oil boom are burning off enough gas to power all the homes in Chicago and Washington combined in a practice causing growing concern about the waste of resources and damage to the environment.

The volume of unwanted gas being flared off in North Dakota, the state leading the shale revolution transforming the outlook for US energy, rose about 50 per cent last year. The surge at the state’s Bakken formation is being replicated in other shale regions with the Texas state regulator issuing 1,963 permits to flare in 2012, more than six times the number of 306 in 2010.

· The rapid increase has made the US one of the world’s worst countries for gas flaring. The volume of gas flared in the US has tripled in just five years, according to World Bank estimates and is now fifth highest in the world, behind Russia, Nigeria, Iran and Iraq.

The flaring is a result, in large part, of the low price of natural gas in North America, which can make it uneconomic to build pipelines and tanks to handle the gas released by oil production. Flaring is often the safest way to dispose of it.

The lights of the flares burning in the Bakken and Texas’ Eagle Ford shale fields can clearly be seen in night-time satellite photography.

Flaring has been attracting attention from investors and environmental campaigners because of the waste of gas and its consequences for greenhouse gas emissions, local air pollution and disturbance to nearby communities.

Flaring in North Dakota increases by about 20 per cent the greenhouse gas emissions resulting from the state’s oil production, refining and transport, compared with the US average, according to Financial Times analysis of official data.

Investors managing a total of $500bn last year wrote to oil companies including ExxonMobil, Chevron, Statoiland US independents urging them to do more to cut their flaring. They warned that “excessive flaring, because of its impact on air quality and climate change, poses significant risks for the companies involved.”

Since then, flaring in the US and concerns over it have only increased.

Mercy Investment Services, which manages the investments of the Sisters of Mercy order of nuns, filed a shareholder resolution this month calling on Continental Resources, the leading oil producer in the Bakken, to adopt clear goals for cutting or eliminating flaring.

Continental said it already flared proportionately less gas than the industry average, was making progress on more reductions and agreed to report on its progress in 2013.

The North Dakota legislature is considering a bill to encourage flaring reduction through tax breaks. The state is also pushing producers to use gas to power drilling rigs.

----- Original Message ----- 

From: "Mall, Amy" <amall@nrdc.org>

To: "cog" <cog@lists.earthworksaction.org>

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 9:34 AM

Subject: [COG] North Carolina: Fracking board set to propose nation's toughest rules

Fracking board set to propose nation's toughest rules
By John Murawski - jmurawski@newsobserver.com<mailto:jmurawski@newsobserver.com>
Published in: Business
North Carolina’s fracking board is considering what its members say would be among the nation’s strictest rules governing shale gas exploration as the panel delves into the arcana of updating the state’s 1940s-era energy regulations.

The N.C. Mining & Energy Commission completed two days of meetings Friday and expects to continue discussions in March about requirements for chemical disclosures, water testing and wastewater disposal by exploration and drilling companies.

Those have been some of the most contentious issues related to fracking in other states, where the practice has been blamed for drinking water contamination, chemical spills and other problems.

Commissioner George Howard said the board could vote as early as March 8 on the first of the proposed rules, but other members said they’re not that optimistic they will be ready.

“We’re trying to come up with the toughest reasonable laws,” Howard said. “We’re cherry-picking the best laws out there.”

The commission, formed last summer by the state legislature, is still getting its sea legs on the issue. During Friday’s public meeting, several members spent more than a half-hour in a meandering discussion about the uneven quality of media coverage of their work and about whether they should hire a press secretary. Several voiced frustration about uninformed, emotional comments from the public at previous workshops. No members of the public made comments Friday.

Fracking is an industry term for hydraulic fracturing of shale rock with high pressure water and chemicals to release natural gas trapped inside the prehistoric formations. The technology remains controversial and won’t be legal in this state until the commission writes about 100 regulations to govern the practice, and the state legislature signs off on the regulatory program.

The commission has a deadline of October 2014 to complete its task. It will develop rules on well casings and property owners’ rights, among a host of legal and environmental issues. A similar process in New York state took about three years. That state currently has a moratorium on fracking.

The board has begun discussing what its members say would be the most stringent standard in the nation for well water testing before drilling and fracking could get under way. It is proposing that a drilling company, at its own expense, test every water source within 5,000 feet of a natural gas wellhead.

Other states generally require testing within 1,000 or 2,000 feet, said Hannah Wiseman, a law professor at Florida State University who tracks fracking laws and rules.

North Carolina’s testing standard, if approved, would require drillers to test about a dozen wells, based on well density averages in northwestern Lee County, which is believed to be the epicenter of the state’s shale gas reserves.

A thorough laboratory water content analysis could cost more than $2,000 per well, said Melinda Chapman, a hydrologist with the U.S. Geological Survey’s Raleigh office. The agency tested 56 local private wells last year and had to use eight different labs to analyze the water samples.

Commissioner Amy Pickle said the 5,000-foot testing distance is just one of several factors. Another important issue the commission will have to decide is what constituents it will require testing for.

Commissioner Howard said the board also will discuss injecting tracers into fracked gas wells to help determine whether the wells are leaking chemicals and methane gas. He said the commission is guided by the state law passed last summer that holds drillers responsible for any water contamination within 5,000 feet of a wellhead unless they can prove otherwise.

“The beauty of a presumptive liability law is that it protects companies from paying for bad water they didn’t cause,” Duke University environmental scientist Robert Jackson said. “It protects homeowners in case their water quality changes.”

Duke University also has tested about 55 private wells in Lee County to establish baseline quality measures. Duke’s testing analyzes the presence of such metals as boron and arsenic, salts and methane gas, such chemicals as benzene and toluene, as well as radioactive elements.

These are elements that are either injected into wells during fracking, or elements agitated underground during the process and liable to flush out of the well over time.

Murawski: 919-829-8932
----- Original Message ----- 

From: "S. Tom Bond" <stombond@lhfwv.com>

To: "Donald C. Strimbeck" <dcsoinks@comcast.net>

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 3:03 PM

Subject: Re: An Oil Boom Takes a Toll on Health Care

> Yes, Do.
> 
> On 1/28/13 2:06 PM, Donald C. Strimbeck wrote:
>> TOM, may I use this in DAILY UPDATE?
>>
>> ----- Original Message ----- From: "S. Tom Bond" <stombond@lhfwv.com>
>> To: "Don Strimbeck" <dcsoinks@comcast.net>
>> Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 8:59 AM
>> Subject: Re: An Oil Boom Takes a Toll on Health Care
>>
>>
>>> Those of us outside the Bakken Oil Boom area can sit and shake our 
>>> heads.  The locals hate the inconvenience of having the hospitals 
>>> over crowded and forced in debt by indigents who can't (or won't) pay 
>>> their medical bills, and all the other horrors of this kind of 
>>> unplanned development.  It is the ultimate warm dream of the business 
>>> community, though.  For the little guys making a few hundred 
>>> thousand, Chamber of Commerce types, and the big boys off in the big 
>>> cities, sipping their imported wines and nodding occasionally to  the 
>>> ambitious young women in the rooms they frequent, it's a dream come 
>>> true.  The more gruesome the disaster is for the locals, the more the 
>>> investors love it.
----- Original Message ----- 

From: Diane 

To: Donald C. Strimbeck 

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 4:19 PM

Subject: Re: fracking and radiation articles 

Of course !  

From: Donald C. Strimbeck 

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 3:53 PM

To: Diane 

Subject: Re: fracking and radiation articles 

 

DIANE, may I use this in DAILY UPDATE?
 

----- Original Message ----- 

From: Diane 

To: Don Strimbeck ; Tom Bond ; Duane Nichols ; Chuck Wyrostok 

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 3:21 PM

Subject: fracking and radiation articles 

 

Just saw this article today.  Part 3 of a 4 part series... Now I gotta go back and dig up the articles for the first 2 parts of the series and wait for the 4th part to come out.  

 

I’m in the process of making major updates to our WV Host Farms website to include pages with article links such as this one, and many, many other articles about the impacts of drilling ....all of them grouped by topics (e.g.  water quality issues,  health impacts, livestock issues, property values impacts, mortgage and insurance issues, water quality, traffic issues, radiation, etc, etc., etc,)   so that when people visit the website they can click on hundreds of articles I’ve been collecting and educate themselves about the “rest of the story” that the industry isn’t sharing on their lobby-funded sites.  

 

 

http://www.timesonline.com/news/local_news/isn-t-this-radiation-naturally-occurring/article_a9af4fb7-26a3-5c8a-afb9-4e29726f37eb.html   

 

Isn’t this radiation naturally occurring?
 

By Rachel MorganShalereporter.comTimesonline.com | 2 comments 
Wastewater from hydraulic fracturing in the Marcellus shale region can be radioactive.
Highly radioactive.
Through a drilling technique known formally as hydraulic fracturing, a stratum of shale rock one mile beneath the surface is blasted with chemically laced, high-pressure water to release pockets of natural gas. That water, now containing mineral debris from the rock formation, is then sucked back out of the earth to be disposed of or recycled.
A constituent element of that wastewater is radium-226. The Marcellus shale is full of it.
Mark Engle, a U.S. Geological Survey research geologist, said the main reason the Marcellus shale is so high in radium is because the shale contains enriched concentrations of uranium, which has a half-life of 4.5 billion years. That means, Engle said, “these rocks will continue to generate radium and other uranium series progeny for a very long time.”
Engle co-authored a USGS report that found that millions of barrels of wastewater from unconventional (fracked) wells in Pennsylvania and vertical wells in New York were 3,609 times more radioactive than the federal limit for drinking water and 300 times more radioactive than a Nuclear Regulatory Commission limit for industrial discharges to water. He also said the Marcellus’ high levels of uranium and radioactivity has to do with the surrounding geology.
Marvin Resnikoff, a physicist at the University of Michigan and senior associate at Radioactive Waste Management Associates, said the Marcellus shale contains about 30 times the amount of radium found in topsoil sampled from New York and Pennsylvania.
And with higher levels of radium in the black shale itself comes increased levels of radium in wastewater, Resnikoff said.
While the radioactive materials contained within the Marcellus during fracking are naturally occurring, experts say high levels still pose a threat to health.
The EPA classifies radon, radium and uranium as “naturally occurring radionuclides found in the environment.” But the EPA also classifies both radium and radon as “potent carcinogens.” The agency says that radium, through oral exposure, can cause lung, bone, head and nasal passage tumors. And radon, if inhaled, causes lung cancer.
Resnikoff agrees.
“Radium is of concern because when ingested or inhaled, it concentrates in bone and can give rise to leukemia,” he said.
While the World Nuclear Association says that naturally occurring radiation makes up for the average person’s annual exposure and is usually not a threat, it also says that certain industries handle significant quantities of Naturally Occurring Radioactive Material, or NORM, which usually ends up their waste streams.
“Over time, as potential NORM hazards have been identified, these industries have increasingly become subject to monitoring and regulation,” the association said. “However, there is as yet little consistency in NORM regulations among industries and countries. This means that material which is considered radioactive waste in one context may not be considered so in another. Also, that which may constitute low-level waste in the nuclear industry might go entirely unregulated in another industry.”
That’s why the nuclear industry is subject to much stricter regulations than the gas industry in terms of regulating potentially radioactive waste, said David Lochbaum, a nuclear engineer who heads the Nuclear Safety Project for the Union of Concerned Scientists.
“NRC's regulations require that every drop of water and every molecule of air discharged from a plant be monitored for radiation,” Lochbaum said.
Ivan White, a career scientist for the National Council on Radiation Protection, said radiation exposure to humans should be limited.
“The goal is to limit the total radiation dose to large populations because of the increased probability of health effects,” he said. “In the current case, the uncontrolled release of hazardous waste could result in the exposure of millions of people over decades.”
White also authored a report issued by the New York-based Grassroots Environmental Education that says fracking can produce waste much higher in radiation than previously thought.
And environmentalists say that radiation is becoming a serious issue in the disposal or treatment of fracking waste.
“The issue with oil and gas development -- and especially fracking, given the large amount of fluids injected -- is that the deep drilling and fracking bring these NORMs back up to the surface as drill cuttings and wastewater,” said Adam Kron, attorney for the Environmental Integrity Project.
“As fracking has rapidly expanded, we’re seeing much more of this radioactive waste, which is a problem, since traditional landfills and wastewater treatment plants aren’t accustomed to handling it," he said. "In fact, wastewater treatment plants aren’t able to remove radioactivity, and we’re starting to hear accounts of landfills receiving -- and sometimes turning away -- radioactive cuttings and sand from across state lines.”
Third of a four-part series on radiation in fracking wastewater. Next up, how dangerous is the radiation in frackwater?
----- Original Message ----- 

From: Mall, Amy 

To: cog 

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 5:40 PM

Subject: [COG] FW: EPA's Hydraulic Fracturing Study Technical Workshop Series: Call for Nominations

From: Matthews.Lisa@epamail.epa.gov [mailto:Matthews.Lisa@epamail.epa.gov] 
Sent: Monday, January 28, 2013 5:27 PM
Subject: EPA's Hydraulic Fracturing Study Technical Workshop Series: Call for Nominations

January 28, 2013 

Dear Roundtable Participants and Observers, 

New information about EPA’s final four technical workshops for its Study of the Potential Impacts of Hydraulic Fracturing on Drinking Water Resources has been posted online at EPA’s Hydraulic Fracturing Study website.  Please visit the site for the latest news about upcoming workshops. 

Topics, dates and locations of the technical workshops are as follows: 

    Well Construction/Operation and Subsurface Modeling – April 16-17 in RTP, NC 
    Wastewater Treatment and Related Modeling – April 18 in RTP, NC 
    Water Acquisition Modeling:  Assessing Impacts Through Modeling and Other Means – June 4 in Arlington, VA 
    Hydraulic Fracturing Case Studies – June 5 in Arlington, VA 

EPA is seeking subject-matter experts to contribute to the workshops by providing technical knowledge during workshop discussions and through selected invited presentations. 

Because meeting space is limited, EPA will select approximately 40-50 experts with significant, relevant and current technical experience to participate in each workshop.  Subject-matter experts will be selected with the goal of maintaining balanced viewpoints from various stakeholder groups including industry, non-governmental organizations, other federal, state and local governments, tribes and the academic community. 

Nominations for these workshops will be accepted through February 22, 2013. 

After the technical workshops take place, a second round of technical roundtables will be scheduled (target July 2013) to discuss outcomes from the process. 

Thank you for your time and willingness to share your expertise.  Please feel free to contact us with any information you have which could improve our study. 


Lisa Matthews 
U.S. EPA Office of Research and Development 
202-564-6669 (ph) 
matthews.lisa@epa.gov 

Published on Monday, January 28, 2013 by Common Dreams 
You Ain't Gonna Frack Near Maggie's Farm: Action Blockades Shell Site

In fight against fracking, activists say: 'Our voices and our numbers are growing'

- Andrea Germanos, staff writer 

We need farms, not fracking.

This was the message from a group of concerned activists on Sunday afternoon as they blocked a Shell fracking site in Pennsylvania in part of the wave of rising actions against fossil fuels.

Wearing signs reading "Fracking Threatens Food" and "Protect Farms for Our Future," members of the Shadbush Environmental Justice Collective rallied behind the passionate Maggie Henry, whose organic pork and poultry farm is less than 4,000 feet from Shell's drilling site.

"People buy my food because they know that it is literally the purest that you can get. My animals run around out on ground, in pasture. They're not cooped up in cages," said Henry, who's been farming for 35 years. "Agriculture, not fracking, is the number one industry in Pennsylvania. This threatens my air, my water, my farm, my livelihood."

She's put her blood and sweat into her "beyond organic" farm, she said. "Every single penny we've earned we've invested into this farm."

With her farm, water and environment potentially ruined from Shell's fracking, Henry asked, "How is this different from Shell sticking their hand in my pocket and stealing from me?"

Devon Cohen, one of the protesters involved in the day's action, added, "Why are we willing to risk so much at the hands of multinational corporations like Shell who have shown their hand in the past as human rights abusers and irresponsible parties of environmental destruction?"

Hundreds of abandoned oil wells make the site a particularly risky place to frack, the group says. Hydro-geologist Daniel Fisher, who has studied the area, warned, "Each of these abandoned wells is a potentially direct pathway or conduit to the surface should any gas or fluids migrate upward from the wells during or after fracking."

Four of the protesters locked themselves to a large papier-mâché pig named Henrietta, which blocked traffic to the site for three hours. Henrietta was made to symbolize the farm as well as "the gas industry [which] is piggish about the carbon-based fuel in the ground and are taking it at our expense," Henry said.

When the protesters locked in the "pig" agreed to disperse and avoid arrest after several hours, Shell took it. In Henry's words, "They stole Henrietta."

Nick Lubecki, one of the protesters who was locked to Henrietta, started his own farm this year in Pittsburgh and said, "It is extremely disturbing as a young farmer to have to worry about the safety of the water supply and a chaotically changing climate while these out of state drillers have the red carpet rolled out for them. In a few years the drillers will all be gone when this boom turns to bust like these things always do. I don’t want to be stuck with their mess to clean up."

The group stated, "Henrietta’s fate is in Shell’s hands, but we’re free to fight another day, our voices and our numbers are growing, and we won’t stop until we win."

Maggie Henry is not about to stop fighting, either. "We're not giving up until they give up," she said.

Article printed from www.CommonDreams.org
Source URL: http://www.commondreams.org/headline/2013/01/28-4 

----- Original Message ----- 

From: Frack Check WV 

To: dcsoinks@comcast.net 

Sent: Tuesday, January 29, 2013 3:02 AM

Subject: Blockade at PA Fracking Site Highlights Risks to Farms and Food

Pig Farm Protest Site in Pennsylvania 

Blockade Highlights Risks to Farms and Food 
From the Shadbush Environmental Justice Collective, January 27, 2013
Residents of Western Pennsylvania and friends of Lawrence County farmer Maggie Henry locked themselves to a giant paper-mache pig today in the entrance to a Shell natural gas well site in order to protest the company’s threat to local agriculture and food safety. The newly-constructed gas well is located at 1545 PA Route 108, Bessemer, PA , 16102, less than 4,000 feet from Henry’s organic pig farm.

The farm has been in the Henry family for generations and has been maintained as a small business despite pressure from industry consolidation. The Henry’s made a switch from dairy to organic pork and poultry production several years ago as part of their commitment to keeping the operation safe and sustainable for generations to come. Joining Maggie Henry at the well site are residents from other Pennsylvania counties affected by natural gas drilling and Pittsburgh-area residents of all ages who support Henry’s fight. Many are customers who buy her food at farmers’ markets and grocery stores who do not want to see the integrity of their food source compromised. 
The Henry farm is especially vulnerable to the risks associated with fracking because it is located in an area riddled with hundreds of abandoned oil wells from the turn of the 20th century. According to hydro-geologist Daniel Fisher who has studied the area, “Each of these abandoned wells is a potentially direct pathway or conduit to the surface should any gas or fluids migrate upward from the wells during or after fracking.”

Methane leaks from gas wells have been responsible for numerous explosions in or near residences in Pennsylvania in recent years. Migrating gas and fluids also threaten groundwater supplies, on which Henry and her animals depend for their drinking water. Last summer a major gas leak in Tioga County, PA caused by Shell’s own drilling operations, produced a 30 foot geyser of methane and water, which spewed from an unplugged well and forced several families to evacuate.

The nine foot tall pig is stationed in the driveway of the site with four protestors chained to its’ legs, obstructing traffic to and from the site. The protestors are wearing signs that read, “Fracking Threatens Food” and “Protect Farms for Our Future.” A couple dozen supporters are also on the scene.

Nick Lubecki, one of the protestors locked to the pig, recently started a farm of his own in Allegheny County. He worries about the future of agriculture in Pennsylvania, which is the state’s number one industry. “It is extremely disturbing as a young farmer to have to worry about the safety of the water supply in a chaotically changing climate while these out of state drillers have the red carpet rolled out for them. In a few years the drillers will all be gone when this boom turns to bust like these things always do. I don’t want to be stuck with their mess to clean up.”

Prior to this action, Henry exhausted all avenues to prevent or shut down the well through the legal system. Supporters of her farm have also held previous protests at the site. Despite the heightened risks posed by the abandoned wells in the area, Shell is moving forward with their operations, and Maggie’s supporters have turned to nonviolent civil disobedience.

The action comes on the heels of escalating nonviolent civil disobedience across the continent to stop extreme energy projects, like fracking, mountaintop removal coal mining and tar sands oil mining, which destroy communities and fuel the climate crisis. Last week a coalition of Appalachian and Navajo communities impacted by strip mining, blockaded Peabody Coal’s headquarters in St. Louis, MO. Earlier this month protestors in eastern Texas erected a tree sit blockade to halt construction of TransCanada’s Keystone XL pipeline, slated to transport crude oil from the devastating tar sands mining in Alberta, Canada to refineries in Texas.

See also: www.ecowatch.org  and www.FrackCheckWV.net
DEP pulls permit, to allow comment

January 29, 2013 12:14 am

By Don Hopey / Pittsburgh Post-Gazette

The state Department of Environmental Protection has rescinded a Marcellus Shale wastewater treatment permit that would have allowed a New Jersey company to spread chemically contaminated salts on roadways, sidewalks and fields statewide.

The DEP pulled the permit, issued in August to Integrated Water Technologies Inc., after admitting the required public notice about the permit did not accurately describe the permitted activity and the department hadn't fully considered the impact on the environment.

The DEP's decision to rescind the permit for the as-yet-to-be-built treatment plant in North Fayette was announced Saturday in the Pennsylvania Bulletin.

It comes less than four months after Citizens for Pennsylvania's Future filed an appeal with the state Environmental Hearing Board that alleged the department had pulled a "switcheroo" by not accurately describing the permit in its public notice. The environmental advocacy organization also asked the hearing board to rescind the permit.

At that time, Kevin Sunday, a DEP spokesman, issued a statement that called PennFuture's appeal "baseless" and "an attempt to manufacture a controversy."

Mr. Sunday, in a statement issued Monday, said the DEP expects to republish the permit notice.

"We are, in the interest of public participation and transparency, providing the public an additional opportunity to comment on this permit," the statement said.

The DEP's original public notice described the permit narrowly -- for the treatment and processing of wastewater from hydraulic fracturing, or fracking, operations at Marcellus Shale gas wells. But after meeting privately with officials of the firm, the DEP issued a permit that allowed two chemical compounds originally classified as waste to be classified as "beneficial use" material that could be used as road and sidewalk de-icer, for roadway dust suppression and for soil stabilization in fields.

And, according to that altered permit, issued in August without public participation on those changes, those salty compounds -- crystallized sodium chloride and liquid calcium chloride -- also can contain limited amounts of arsenic, lead, mercury, ammonia, volatile organic compounds and diesel hydrocarbons.

Those are significant changes, according to PennFuture, and could impact public health, but no public comment or input was sought by the DEP.

"One of our jobs is to protect the public's right to participate in government decision making," said George Jugovic Jr., who served as DEP southwest region director in the Rendell administration and is now PennFuture president and chief executive officer. "DEP misrepresented what the permit was about and did so after extensive back-and-forth meetings with the company."

Integrated Water, based in Parsippany, N.J., could not be reached Monday for comment. In October, a spokesman said the company was in the process of getting financing for the wastewater treatment facility, which, according to plans, would be capable of processing between 500,000 and 1 million gallons of wastewater a day from the fracking process.

Don Hopey: dhopey@post-gazette.com or 412-263-1983. 
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INNOVA supports natural gas vehicle conversion facility

Posted: Jan 28, 2013 3:59 PM EST Updated: Jan 28, 2013 4:22 PM EST 
INNOVA Commercialization Group announced Jan. 28 that it has provided financing to Alternative Fuel Solutions of West Virginia, for a facility that converts aftermarket vehicles to operate on natural gas, propane, and other alternative fuels.  

INNOVA believes for two reasons that the facility will succeed, according to INNOVA Director Guy Peduto.  

"The first is the obvious desire to find a more cost-effective fuel solution for fleet vehicles," Peduto said. "And second, the very attractive West Virginia tax credits specific to alternative fuel conversions that are available."

West Virginia's 2011 Marcellus Gas Manufacturing and Development Act provides several incentives to stimulate investment into shale gas utilization. Those who convert vehicles to operate on certain alternative fuels at a facility such as the one proposed by AFSWV may qualify for state tax credits of 50 percent of the cost of conversion up to $7,500, or up to $25,000 for large industrial vehicles.

A low-interest loan from the INNOVA Commercialization Group relies on funds from the Appalachian Regional Commission and the Claude Worthington Benedum Foundation, and those funds are matched through the West Virginia Capital Access Program, according to Peduto.

AFSWV is made up of local entrepreneurs and investors in alliance with Alternative Fuel Solutions of Pennsylvania, which operates a similar facility in Mahaffey, Pa.

Like that facility, the Morgantown location will offer EPA-certified Compressed Natural Gas, or CNG, systems, diesel dual-fuel retrofits and propane conversions. 

The conversion process involves adding an alternative fuel storage tank and, in some cases, a new fuel injection system. Other adaptations involve modifying the vehicle's computer system to accommodate the alternative fuel.

"We are in a fantastic position to take advantage of a local workforce utilizing abundant and inexpensive fuels produced right here in West Virginia," said Travis Buggey, a partner in AFSWV — "not to mention the bonuses of reducing environmental emissions and creating jobs."

At current prices, fleet owners save 35 percent on fuel costs on average by switching to an alternative domestic fuel before factoring in state tax credits, according to Alternative Fuel Solutions of Pennsylvania co-founder James O'Donnell.

Alternative Fuel Solutions of West Virginia, LLC will hold a ground breaking of its new Morgantown facility in March.

INNOVA is an initiative of the West Virginia High Technology Consortium Foundation. For information contact INNOVA Director Guy Peduto at (304) 333-6769 or at gpeduto@wvhtf.org.

Chattanooga could be a hot spot for fracking

Posted: Jan 28, 2013 1:50 PM EST Updated: Jan 28, 2013 1:51 PM EST 
CHATTANOOGA, Tenn. (AP) — New state rules for hydraulic fracturing of rock to release natural gas have come about as interest builds in tapping the Chattanooga Shale formation.

The Chattanooga Times Free Press reported a half-dozen drilling companies have looked at property leases and mineral rights in Hamilton County. A spokeswoman with the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation said no permits have been granted and none are pending locally for the so-called "fracking" method of drilling.

Industry officials say fracking does not endanger the water supply and say there is a lot of hysteria about the practice.

But Henry Spratt, University of Tennessee-Chattanooga biology professor, was preparing Monday to speak to a Sierra Club meeting about his concerns. Spratt pointed to Pennsylvania, where he said some wells are so polluted they can catch fire.

"Sure, there's potential good for getting the gas out of the ground. But if you have one well that's messed up, then that whole area is messed up for a long time," Spratt said,

John Bonar, general manager of Atlas Entergy Tennessee, said hydraulic fracturing is not a new method and has been proven useful.

"Between 1 million and 2 million wells have been fracked since 1947," Bonar said. "It's a rare event when there's a problem. ... We're trying to get gas out of the ground. We don't want to lose it (in a water body or the air.) It's not in our interest to see it leak off."

What is relatively new is the ability to drill horizontally.

In hydraulic fracturing, water or nitrogen gas is pumped into the shale deposit to break the rock and free gas trapped in it.

Tennessee's new rules don't require drillers to test wells or notify neighbors unless they pump in more than 200,000 gallons of water, according to Renee Hoyos, executive director of the Tennessee Clean Water Network.

Regulators have acknowledges fracking most wells in Tennessee would require about 175,000 gallons of water.

Anne Davis and Gwen Parker, attorneys with the Southern Environmental Law Center, said the new rules came about as the state was streamlining regulatory agencies within the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation.

"On Sept. 20, the oil and gas board approved rules and then ceased existence and was merged with the water board as of Oct. 1, so it's now the water and oil and gas board," Davis said.

The law center has challenged the rules in a letter to the Tennessee attorney general.

"We hope the attorney general will send them back to what will now be the water, oil and gas board, and that some more protective rules will be adopted," Davis said.

The question is still under review.

Energy law firm picks up DEP’s senior counsel

Posted: Jan 28, 2013 10:07 AM EST Updated: Jan 28, 2013 10:16 AM EST 
By Taylor Kuykendall, Reporter 

The senior counsel for the Department of Environmental Protection has been hired by business law firm Lewis Glasser Casey & Rollins PLLC. 

According to a news release from the law firm, Joseph Jenkins, as senior counsel  at the DEP, has successfully defended a challenge to state notice, comment and appeal procedures for oil and gas well permits and was actively involved in defending challenges to surface mining and pollution discharge permits issued by the agency. 

"As one of the premier energy law firms in the Appalachian Basin, we wanted to enhance Lewis Glasser's full-service capabilities with Joe's unique environmental law and regulatory knowledge," said Nick Casey, managing member. "Joe's background in regulatory matters, litigation and legislative rule-making will serve our clients well." 

Jenkins also served as counsel to the West Virginia Senate Committees on Energy, Industry and Mining and Transportation and Infrastructure during the 2011 Legislative Session. The law firm said it is expanding its energy practice, particularly in the natural gas sector. 

"Joseph has joined the firm as an associate, and his practice focuses mainly on energy and natural resources law, environmental law, legislation, rule-making and litigation with an emphasis in oil and natural gas, mining and quarrying, including SMCRA, Clean Water Act and state and federal environmental permitting, compliance and enforcement," the news release stated. 

The firm also "maintains an active government relations practice" through LGCR Government Solutions LLC. The firm has offices in Charleston, Morgantown and Ohio. 

